

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

Room 400, City Hall
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Friday, May 3, 2013
1:11 p.m.

PRESENT:

COUNCILMAN CURTIS JONES, JR. - CHAIR
COUNCILMAN BOBBY HENON - VICE CHAIR
COUNCILWOMAN JANNIE L. BLACKWELL
COUNCILWOMAN MARIA D. QUINONES-SANCHEZ
COUNCILMAN KENYATTA JOHNSON
COUNCILMAN DENNIS O'BRIEN

BILLS: 130014, 130184, 130250

1 - - -

2 COUNCILMAN JONES: This a hearing, good
3 afternoon, on Public Safety -- Committee on Public
4 Safety. We will be dealing with Bills No. 130014,
5 130184 and 130250.

6 Will the clerk please read the title of the
7 bills.

8 THE CLERK: Bill No. 130014, an Ordinance
9 amending Title 4 of The Philadelphia Code,
10 entitled "The Philadelphia Building Construction
11 and Occupancy Code," by amending Subcode "F ("The
12 Fire Code"), by modifying a subsection providing
13 for the types of premises identification required
14 on new and existing buildings, under certain terms
15 and conditions.

16 COUNCILMAN JONES: Note that a quorum is
17 present in the form of the to my far left
18 Councilwoman Sanchez, Councilman Johnson and
19 Councilwoman Blackwell.

20 Just as opening remarks, we are -- very
21 briefly, that we are honored to have a first class
22 first responder group in the Fire Department. So
23 much recognized by the Commonwealth of
24 Pennsylvania, that they have acknowledged that we

1 would be the best copartners in case of an
2 emergency to coordinate efforts for the
3 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. That in itself is a
4 statement and one that should be memorialized on
5 the record and we are thankful for it.

6 Second part of this is that as we become a
7 safer city as fires are being reduced, we are not
8 sitting on our laurels thankful that we are just
9 reducing fires. But the name of the game, I've
10 learned, is prevention. We are going to continue
11 to move the needle in the right direction to
12 prevent fires as we go.

13 One step in that direction will be property
14 identifications that will be on residential
15 properties and some commercial properties so that
16 First Responders in the heat of battle will be
17 able to quickly, swiftly identify properties as to
18 cut down the critical seconds in response times.
19 So, we are exited on the Committee of Public
20 Property to be a part of that with the Fire
21 Department as our partners.

22 Are there any other comments from members
23 of the committee?

24 Seeing none, will the clerk please read the

1 first two witnesses to testify.

2 THE CLERK: Lieutenant Lisa Forest.

3 COUNCILMAN JONES: Would you please come up
4 to the table. Lieutenant, good afternoon. Do you
5 have something for us? You are going to -- you
6 can have more than one witness come up to the
7 panel, but if you want to begin your -- you can
8 actually take the mic with you or you can take one
9 of these.

10 We are experiencing technical difficulties.

11 LT. FORREST: Good afternoon, Chairperson
12 Jones and the Members of the Public Safety
13 Committee. I am Lisa Forest, a Lieutenant with
14 the Philadelphia Fire Department. As a newly
15 promoted Lieutenant, I was assigned to Engine
16 Company 50 in the North Philadelphia section.

17 When I made the transition from firefighter
18 to Lieutenant, I quickly realized that this
19 position was more than supervising people. It was
20 about delivering efficient and effective service
21 to the community. While responding to various
22 emergency calls, it was noticed that homes did not
23 have identifiable addresses. Therefore, I
24 developed the Operation 911 Save Program, which

1 stands for Seek Address Verify Easily.

2 The goal of this program was to provide
3 community service on the importance of emergency
4 responders being able to quickly and easily
5 identify residential addresses and to install
6 reflective address panels to those occupants. I
7 am just going to ask that you focus your attention
8 to the short video presentation of the Operation
9 911 Save Program.

10 - - -

11 (SAVE Program video played)

12 - - -

13 COUNCILMAN JONES: Lieutenant, I just want
14 to commend you on putting together the video but
15 as important, the case as to why we should proceed
16 in that direction. Public policy often trickles
17 down but it works best when it trickles up from
18 the people that actually use the end policy or
19 product. So, I want to thank you and the members
20 of your company for really educating us on how we
21 can be helpful to use address identification in a
22 meaningful way both for your ambulance folk but
23 also First Responders in cases of a fire.

24 How do you plan on rolling this

1 demonstration project out?

2 LT. FORREST: Well, sir, as it was stated
3 in the video, we took three blocks. And pretty
4 much what happened was, we surveyed the
5 neighborhood first. The video really didn't
6 explain that too much. But before we even decided
7 to do the program, we talked to the community.

8 So we knocked on the doors of three blocks
9 and asked them if we could provide to you an
10 address panel that would help us get to you
11 quicker, would you want it? And they said yes.
12 Then we asked if you had to pay for it, would you
13 pay for it? And they said yes. Then we asked if
14 it was no cost to you, would that be okay? And
15 that was even better.

16 So like I said, we surveyed the community.
17 And then as a part of our community day service,
18 we, the officers and members of Engine 50 Ladder
19 12, went out and actually put these address
20 panels. And I can say that the people in the
21 neighborhood were happy. And the blocks that we
22 did not do they were asking how can we be a part
23 of this thing.

24 We know that we didn't have the resources

1 to do it because one of things that was not added
2 was the officers put up their own money to do this
3 because it was that important to have it in our
4 community and service our community. That is
5 where the funding came from, the Officers of
6 Ladder 12 and Engine 50.

7 COUNCILMAN JONES: Are there any questions
8 for this witness by members of the committee?

9 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: We certainly just
10 want to reiterate our thank you. It's sorely
11 needed. It's a wonderful idea.

12 LT. FORREST: Thank you, ma'am.

13 COUNCILMAN JONES: Councilman Johnson?

14 I want to for the record recognize
15 Councilman Henon has joined the committee.

16 Again, right along the with great work you
17 do every day, not just when responding to a fire
18 but also educating our citizens on how to prevent
19 fire, installing and working with us on smoke
20 detectors. We just did a bill that increased the
21 responsibility level to ten-year lithium battery.
22 So this goes right along with that plethora of
23 things that help us keep our citizens safe.

24 We really thank you. And thank you for

1 your hard work.

2 LT. FORREST: Thank you, sir.

3 COUNCILMAN JONES: One other question. How
4 much time does it take to install, describe that
5 process, and how much it cost.

6 LT. FORREST: Okay. What happened was we
7 ordered the materials. We found a vendor online
8 where the panels came separate with the reflective
9 numbers. And it took about five minutes to put
10 the numbers on the panel. Then like the
11 firefighter said, we put just some hypoxxy on the
12 back and it took about a minute.

13 That day we went out it was probably one of
14 the coldest days of the winter. But to this day,
15 those address panels are still up. Every last one
16 that we put up in those 30 homes are still there.
17 So, it does not take a whole lot of time at all.

18 Sir, might I add one more thing?

19 COUNCILMAN JONES: Yes. Please feel free.

20 LT. FORREST: Like I said, as a result of
21 the Operation 911 Program, we hope that we could
22 amend the Fire Code and to enhance public safety
23 one of the things that we also did with this
24 program was used it as an opportunity to talk to

1 the members of the community. So not only did we
2 give them reflective address panels, we also
3 passed out emergency literature talking about
4 emergencies, how to prevent yourself from fires,
5 prevent fires, how to call 911 in case of an
6 emergency.

7 Not only did we go out and place reflective
8 address panels, we got a chance to get involved
9 with the community and let them know how important
10 fire safety is. It was just a great thing. We
11 also got a chance to do some home inspections at
12 the same time.

13 COUNCILMAN JONES: Multipurpose on the
14 visit.

15 LT. FORREST: Yes.

16 COUNCILMAN JONES: Just one other question.
17 Would that team be prepared to help seniors who
18 may not be able to install these types of
19 identifiers? Is that a part of like when you go
20 out for installation of a smoke detector, we might
21 just use that opportunity to put up the address
22 identifier.

23 LT. FORREST: Yes. Absolutely, sir.

24 COUNCILMAN JONES: Like to give you those

1 resources. Again, Lieutenant, thank you for
2 enlightening us in the ways that you have. And we
3 are looking forward to working in partnership with
4 you and your team.

5 LT. FORREST: Thank you.

6 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you so much.

7 Will the clerk please read the next panel
8 of witnesses to testify.

9 THE CLERK: Bill No. 130184, an Ordinance
10 authorizing the Fire Department, on behalf of the
11 City of Philadelphia, as the Sponsoring Agency of
12 Pennsylvania Task Force One, of the National Urban
13 Search and Rescue Response System, to enter into
14 multi-year agreements with Participating Agencies
15 for the purpose of developing resources for
16 emergency preparedness, and for the maintenance
17 and readiness of the National Urban Search and
18 Rescue Response System.

19 Chief Craig Murphy.

20 COUNCILMAN JONES: Will the witnesses
21 please approach the panel. Are there others to
22 testify?

23 THE CLERK: No.

24 CHIEF MURPHY: Good afternoon.

1 COUNCILMAN JONES: Good afternoon. Could
2 you state your name for the record and proceed
3 with your testimony, please.

4 CHIEF MURPHY: My name is Craig Murphy.
5 Good afternoon, Chairman Jones, Members of the
6 Committee on Public Safety. I'm Craig Murphy, the
7 Chief of Special Operations for the Philadelphia
8 Fire Department and the Task Force representative
9 of Pennsylvania Task Force One.

10 I am here today to testify in support of
11 Bill No. 130184 which would allow the City of
12 Philadelphia to enter into multiple year
13 memorandums of agreement with participating
14 agencies of Pennsylvania Task Force One. The
15 purpose of this ordinance is to consolidate the
16 process of having participating agencies continue
17 to operate within the guidelines of their
18 memorandums of agreement, MOA, over multiple
19 years.

20 These agreements outline the ability of the
21 participating agencies to engage in response
22 activities whenever there are disasters,
23 nationwide in the Commonwealth, be it man made or
24 natural and also to various national level events

1 such as the Presidential National Conventions, the
2 G8 Summits or the Olympics.

3 It also allows these agencies to engage in
4 preparedness activities such as training, record
5 keeping, administrative work at the task force
6 level and to be paid for their services through
7 the sponsoring agencies which is the City of
8 Philadelphia's fiscal processes.

9 Historically, when the City of Harrisburg
10 was the sponsoring agency of Pennsylvania Task
11 Force One, these agreements were executed over
12 multiple years due to the fact that the agreements
13 themselves rarely change in scope. By enacting
14 this ordinance, it benefits both the sponsoring
15 agency and the participating agency in the
16 following ways.

17 Each time an MOA is reinitiated, there is a
18 cost incurred by both agencies and employee salary
19 to work on the project. This ordinance will
20 ensure this cost is limited to the time frame
21 established by the City Solicitor's recommendation
22 to the Fire Commissioner instead of annually.

23 This ordinance will also allow for the
24 Philadelphia Fire Department Office of Procurement

1 their employees to focus on Fire Department
2 business other than Pennsylvania Task Force One
3 MOA issues. As it stands right now, it's a
4 pretty -- the process is pretty time consuming.

5 This ordinance would also permit a more
6 streamline method to meet the DHS, FEMA guidelines
7 on recruiting and retention of specialty positions
8 on Pennsylvania Task Force One. These positions
9 include the canine components, the HazMat
10 component, physicians and structural engineers who
11 are on the task force. This ordinance would also
12 allow for a more regional involvement from current
13 and future members of our regional partners which
14 is the Southeast Pennsylvania Regional Task Force,
15 Urban Search and Rescue Team Pennsylvania Company
16 2.

17 In closing, enacting this ordinance
18 benefits the City of Philadelphia as sponsoring
19 agency and the 23 participating agency because it
20 removes the repetitive burden and related cost of
21 duplication of work annually for all parties
22 involved. Fire Commissioner Ayers, Director of
23 Public Safety Resnick, the sponsoring agency chief
24 of Pennsylvania Task Force One, they both fully

1 support this ordinance.

2 Thank you for your time.

3 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you.

4 CHIEF MURPHY: Thanks for allowing me to
5 present.

6 COUNCILMAN JONES: Chief Murphy, is this
7 like a honor --

8 CHIEF MURPHY: Yes.

9 COUNCILMAN JONES: -- bestowed upon the
10 City of Philadelphia? If so, elaborate a little
11 bit.

12 CHIEF MURPHY: The Federal Task Force
13 System consist of 28 Urban Search and Rescue Task
14 Force. At the time, there was -- some time in
15 2011, there was an issue with Harrisburg being the
16 sponsoring agency of Pennsylvania Task Force One.

17 The City of Philadelphia Fire Department,
18 we've been involved with the Task Force since the
19 late '90s as a participating agency ourselves
20 and -- with Harrisburg being the sponsoring
21 agency. Yes. Once the -- the honor was bestowed
22 upon us as sponsoring agency. What we tried to do
23 is work at our best to make it as easy and as
24 flawless and as seamless as possible for

1 participating agencies. But the fact the City of
2 Philadelphia is the sponsoring agency of this task
3 is an honor in itself.

4 COUNCILMAN JONES: I've been honored to be
5 sponsor of -- usually it wind up costing me. Is
6 this going to cost the City of Philadelphia
7 anything?

8 CHIEF MURPHY: No. Actually, it saves
9 cost. It saves cost.

10 COUNCILMAN JONES: Can you elaborate on how
11 that works.

12 CHIEF MURPHY: Sure. As I stated in my
13 testimony, each time we go back and do this, it
14 has to run through a process. The process takes
15 man hours or labor intensive hours out of the
16 City's operating budget; more importantly, the
17 Fire Department's operating budget. The Task
18 Force itself is self sustaining through
19 cooperative agreement with the Department of
20 Homeland Security. But the soft cost that comes
21 along with the City being sponsoring agency, we
22 try to keep those costs as minimal as possible.

23 COUNCILMAN JONES: So, Homeland Security,
24 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, then you talked

1 about a regional approach. I'm assuming Camden,
2 Delaware.

3 Is it Camden? No? Who else?

4 CHIEF MURPHY: Our regional partner is the
5 five county region of Philadelphia; Montgomery,
6 Delaware, Bucks and the surrounding counties.
7 Now, New Jersey, once you cross the water, they
8 have a task force, as well. And they -- if need
9 be, they could reach out to us and of course
10 through our request from the Governor, we could
11 deploy to Jersey.

12 As a matter of fact, with a Presidential
13 declaration or request to the Governor, we could
14 deploy anywhere.

15 COUNCILMAN JONES: When we see these
16 preparation drills -- I have seen them on a number
17 of occasions where we did a simulation in the
18 subway or -- is that a part of this readiness or
19 response?

20 CHIEF MURPHY: Absolutely. It's a part of
21 readiness. You know as well as I do, sir, is
22 preparedness is -- until the event happens, we
23 need to be prepared. That is exactly what the
24 task force does. It continuously prepares itself

1 through training, through using the members of
2 Urban Search and Rescue teams throughout the
3 Commonwealth to ensure that we are on the top of
4 our game. We have been through Hurricane Katrina.
5 We have been to the 9/11 response. We have been
6 to various -- Hurricane Gustaf.

7 COUNCILMAN JONES: What about Boston?

8 CHIEF MURPHY: Yup. Most recently
9 Hurricane Sandi. We spent 13 days of Hurricane
10 Sandi.

11 COUNCILMAN JONES: So are these both
12 national disaster and also terrorist acts.

13 CHIEF MURPHY: Yes.

14 COUNCILMAN JONES: So Boston and lessons
15 learned from that any?

16 CHIEF MURPHY: Always. Since that happened
17 in a state with its own federal task force, that
18 state was called up on alert through the Federal
19 Task Force. Through the process, through the FEMA
20 branch, an after action report will come out and
21 it will give us some information, lessons learned
22 through that whole event.

23 COUNCILMAN JONES: That's appreciated.

24 Are there any questions from members of the

1 panel for this witness?

2 COUNCILMAN JOHNSON: Yes.

3 COUNCILMAN JONES: Councilman Johnson.

4 COUNCILMAN JOHNSON: It's more of a
5 statement. Appreciate your testimony.

6 Something that stuck out which is so very
7 important is the readiness and the preparedness
8 component of your presentation. And oftentimes we
9 sit back and we get in a variety of different
10 situations and trying to put the pieces of the
11 puzzle together and figure out why could have,
12 would have, should have, how can we prevent.

13 I want to commend. That part stuck out
14 more than anything else. Being prepared, taking
15 the time and the investment to prepare on the
16 front end. I think that is something notably that
17 should be recognized. So thank you.

18 CHIEF MURPHY: Thank you.

19 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Thank you.

20 COUNCILMAN JOHNSON: Thank you so much for
21 your testimony. We appreciate what you do. More
22 and more, I mean, the world is a much more
23 dangerous place. But we can sleep at night
24 knowing that you are not sleeping on what could

1 potentially happen. So thank you.

2 CHIEF MURPHY: Thank you.

3 COUNCILMAN JONES: Will the clerk please
4 read the title of the next bill.

5 THE CLERK: Bill No. 130250, an Ordinance
6 amending Subcode "F" of Title 4 of The
7 Philadelphia Code, entitled "The Philadelphia Fire
8 Code," the base code of which is the 2009 edition
9 of the International Fire Code published by the
10 International Code Council.

11 Witnesses, Deputy Chief Richard Bailey and
12 Captain Clifford Gilliam.

13 COUNCILMAN JOHNSON: Thank you. Good
14 afternoon.

15 MR. BAILEY: Good afternoon.

16 CAPTAIN GILLIAM: Good afternoon.

17 COUNCILMAN JOHNSON: In any order you
18 choose. State your name for the record and begin
19 your testimony.

20 MR. BAILEY: Good afternoon, Chairperson
21 Jones and Members of the Public Safety Committee.
22 My name is Richard Bailey. I'm a retired Deputy
23 Chief and Former Chief of the Fire Department's
24 Fire Code Unit. With me today is Clifford

1 Gilliam. He is the Operations Chief -- the
2 Operations Captain of the Fire Code Unit. We are
3 here today to testify in support of Bill 130250,
4 which amends the 2010 Fire Code. Since I prepared
5 the Fire Code amendments ordinance, even though I
6 am retired now, I was asked to present testimony
7 on behalf of the Fire Department.

8 COUNCILMAN JONES: You know you can't get
9 away from us.

10 MR. BAILEY: The purpose of the amendments
11 to the Fire Code is to simplify the Code. The
12 ordinance also contains amendments that related to
13 the requirements for carbon monoxide alarms at
14 homes, which is a previous bill; smoke alarms in
15 dwellings that have ten-year non-removeable
16 batteries, also a previous ordinance; and newly
17 installed addresses on properties to have
18 reflective addresses, which was the companion bill
19 to this.

20 Regarding the simplifying of the Fire Code,
21 during the past year, members of the Fire
22 Department and the Department of Licenses and
23 Inspections have found changes to the Fire Code
24 made by the International Code Council to be

1 confusing, making the location -- the locating of
2 information and the Code difficult.

3 An example is the Chapter on Means of
4 Egress, which contains maintenance requirements
5 for exiting from a building such as maintaining of
6 exit signs and not blocking of exit doors and exit
7 stairways. In the previous edition of the Fire
8 Code, all of the requirements were in the chapter
9 on Means of Egress. The current edition of the
10 Fire Code some of the -- some are in chapter on
11 the Means of Egress and others are in another
12 chapter dealing with existing buildings.

13 This relocation of requirements was done in
14 two other chapters of the Code, as well.
15 Inspectors in both the Fire Department and L&I
16 found it difficult locating all of the
17 requirements related to, one, fire safety subject.
18 Reorganization of the Fire Code will make it
19 easier for inspectors and other persons to locate
20 information in the Fire Code.

21 The inspectors in both departments, if this
22 bill passes, will be given training on the new
23 code. The Fire Department supports the
24 reorganization of the Fire Code.

1 Thank you.

2 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you.

3 CAPTAIN GILLIAM: Good afternoon. Captain
4 Gilliam, Captain of the Fire Code Unit. I have no
5 prepared statement.

6 COUNCILMAN JONES: Okay. I will note that
7 Councilman O'Brien has joined us.

8 How often does the Fire Code get updated?

9 MR. BAILEY: Normally, it's updated every
10 three years. Now, that's by mandate of the State.
11 When a new edition to the Code comes out by the
12 International Code Council and the State uses
13 those codes as do most states throughout the
14 country, the State mandates that we within one
15 year of that new edition being published, each
16 municipality has to adopt it.

17 When the new edition came out in 2012, the
18 State opted not to adopt the new editions of the
19 Code. But it was an appropriate time for us to
20 update our Fire Code, so we went ahead and did
21 that. Whereas, the building code is not being
22 updated.

23 COUNCILMAN JONES: Are there any other
24 questions from Members of the Committee about the

1 Fire Code? We have Councilman Henon from L&I, so
2 he's here along with us.

3 COUNCILMAN HENON: Good afternoon. Thank
4 you for your testimony. Just one real simple
5 question.

6 Why -- does the International Fire Code
7 usually come through -- would -- how come it's
8 coming through Public Safety? I understand for
9 the -- because it directly affects public safety,
10 but not L&I.

11 MR. BAILEY: Well, in the past when all of
12 the codes were being updated, it went to the L&I
13 Committee. I'm not clear why it is now Public
14 Safety. I suppose because it is a Public Safety
15 and it was only the one code, but I'm not clear
16 about that.

17 COUNCILMAN HENON: I am glad that the
18 Public Safety Committee can be a vehicle for the
19 adoption of the International Fire and Safety
20 Code, so thank you.

21 MR. BAILEY: Good. Councilman Jones I have
22 one other point to make. We are required by the
23 State when we make changes to the code, the State
24 requires that any changes to a code -- this isn't

1 limited to the Fire Code, it could be any kind the
2 City uses like building, plumbing, electrical and
3 so on. The changes have to be as stringent or
4 more stringent than whatever the code is and it
5 can't be less.

6 We have to notify the State when we were
7 making those changes. I have done that. Before I
8 retired in March, a copy of the -- after it went
9 to the Law Department and approval of the Law
10 Department, we sent a copy of the ordinance to the
11 State. It indicated the changes and the
12 explanation that was done.

13 When I was notified of the City Council
14 hearing, I notified the State. We are required to
15 give them 30 days notice. So between the time I
16 notified them and this day, I have not heard
17 anything. I have made two phone calls to them. I
18 have sent them three emails. Counsel for the Fire
19 Department, which is the Law Department, has
20 attempted to contact them.

21 We have had no response from the State, my
22 five correspondence and whatever the Law
23 Department did. I just wanted to make the comment
24 that we have not complied with State law in that

1 we have not given them 30-days notice. I'm not
2 sure what more we can do since the State hasn't
3 responded to any of the replies.

4 COUNCILMAN JONES: Do I understand you
5 correctly to say that we have attempted to give
6 them notice, but we have not gotten an official
7 response?

8 MR. BAILEY: Correct. We have not gotten
9 any response.

10 COUNCILMAN JONES: Well --

11 MR. BAILEY: I am not proposing we do
12 anything. I was in support of going ahead with
13 it. I am not sure that the State would ever
14 respond to us. I am not clear why they have not.
15 We have had both phone calls and emails and no
16 responses.

17 COUNCILMAN JONES: Okay. Thank you for
18 your testimony. Are there any other -- Councilman
19 Henon.

20 COUNCILMAN HENON: Just one quick question.
21 This is National Fire Code, correct?
22 International?

23 MR. BAILEY: It's International Fire Code.

24 COUNCILMAN HENON: Which is adapted by the

1 State, which is then passed through to the
2 municipalities; is that correct?

3 MR. BAILEY: Correct.

4 COUNCILMAN HENON: The City of Philadelphia
5 is doing its job and responsibilities with
6 updating its Fire Code and Safety.

7 MR. BAILEY: Correct.

8 COUNCILMAN HENON: Am I understand that
9 assumption?

10 MR. BAILEY: Correct.

11 COUNCILMAN HENON: Great. The
12 Administration supports it. L&I supports it. The
13 Fire Department supports it, and I think this
14 Council body supports it. Thank you very much.

15 MR. BAILEY: Thank you.

16 COUNCILMAN JONES: Any other questions?

17 Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.

18 We now conclude our public hearing and will now
19 open our public meeting.

20 Excuse us a second.

21 - - -

22 (At this time, a discussion was held off
23 the record.)

24 - - -

1 COUNCILMAN JONES: Chair recognizes Vice
2 Chair Councilman Henon for a motion.

3 COUNCILMAN HENON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
4 Like to make a motion that Bill Nos. 130014 and
5 Bill No. 130250 be voted out of Committee with a
6 favorable recommendation with the Rules suspension
7 as to be read at the next Council session.

8 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Second.

9 COUNCILMAN JONES: Having been moved and
10 second, all in favor?

11 (Chorus of Ayes)

12 COUNCILMAN JONES: All opposed? Seeing
13 none, the bill passes.

14 Chair now recognizes Vice Chair Henon for
15 another motion.

16 COUNCILMAN HENON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
17 Recommended that the Bill No. 130184 be voted out
18 of Committee with a favorable recommendation
19 without a rules suspension as to be read at the
20 appropriate Council session.

21 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Second.

22 COUNCILMAN JONES: Having been moved and
23 second, all in favor?

24 (Chorus of Ayes)

1 COUNCILMAN JONES: All opposed? The bill
2 carries -- Bill No. 130184 is moved out of
3 Committee with a favorable recommendation without
4 a rules suspension.

5 This concludes our public meeting. Thank
6 you very much.

7 (Public Meeting adjourned at 1:47 p.m.)

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

C E R T I F I C A T I O N

I, hereby certify that the
proceedings and evidence noted are
contained fully and accurately in the
stenographic notes taken by me in the
foregoing matter, and that this is a
correct transcript of the same.

Court Reporter - Notary Public

(The foregoing certification of
this transcript does not apply to any
reproduction of the same by any means,
unless under the direct control and/or
supervision of the certifying reporter.)

A ability 11:20 able 3:17 5:4 9:18 Absolutely 9:23 16:20 accurately 29:6 acknowledged 2:24 action 17:20 activities 11:22 12:4 acts 17:12 adapted 25:24 add 8:18 added 7:1 address 5:1,6,21 6:10,19 8:15 9:2 9:8,21 addresses 4:23 5:5 20:17,18 adjourned 28:7 Administration 26:12 administrative 12:5 adopt 22:16,18 adoption 23:19 afternoon 2:3 4:4 4:11 10:24 11:1 11:5 19:14,15 19:16,20 22:3 23:3 agencies 10:14 11:14,16,21 12:3,7,18 15:1 agency 10:11 12:10,15,15 13:19,19,23 14:16,19,21,22 15:2,21 agreement 11:13 11:18 15:19 agreements 10:14 11:20 12:11,12 ahead 22:20 25:12 alarms 20:13,14	alert 17:18 allow 11:11 12:23 13:12 allowing 14:4 allows 12:3 ambulance 5:22 amend 8:22 amending 2:9,11 19:6 amendments 20:5 20:10,12 amends 20:4 and/or 29:18 annually 12:22 13:21 apply 29:16 appreciate 18:5 18:21 appreciated 17:23 approach 10:21 16:1 appropriate 22:19 27:20 approval 24:9 asked 6:9,12,13 20:6 asking 6:22 assigned 4:15 assuming 16:1 assumption 26:9 attempted 24:20 25:5 attention 5:7 authorizing 10:10 Ayers 13:22 Ayes 27:11,24 B back 8:12 15:13 18:9 Bailey 19:11,15 19:20,22 20:10 22:9 23:11,21 25:8,11,23 26:3 26:7,10,15 base 19:8	batteries 20:16 battery 7:21 battle 3:16 behalf 10:10 20:7 benefits 12:14 13:18 best 3:1 5:17 14:23 bestowed 14:9,21 better 6:15 bill 2:8 7:20 10:9 11:11 19:4,5 20:3,14,18 21:22 27:4,5,13 27:17 28:1,2 bills 1:19 2:4,7 bit 14:11 Blackwell 1:11 2:19 7:9 18:19 27:8,21 blocking 21:6 blocks 6:3,8,21 BOBBY 1:10 body 26:14 Boston 17:7,14 branch 17:20 briefly 2:21 Bucks 16:6 budget 15:16,17 building 2:10 21:5 22:21 24:2 buildings 2:14 21:12 burden 13:20 business 13:2 C C 29:2,2 call 9:5 called 17:18 calls 4:22 24:17 25:15 Camden 16:1,3 canine 13:9 Captain 19:12,16 20:2 22:3,3,4 carbon 20:13	carries 28:2 case 3:1 5:15 9:5 cases 5:23 certain 2:14 certainly 7:9 certification 29:15 certify 29:4 certifying 29:19 Chair 1:10,10 27:1,2,14,14 Chairman 11:5 27:3,16 Chairperson 4:11 19:20 chance 9:8,11 change 12:13 changes 20:23 23:23,24 24:3,7 24:11 chapter 21:3,8,10 21:12 chapters 21:14 chief 10:19,24 11:4,7 13:23 14:4,6,8,12 15:8 15:12 16:4,20 17:8,13,16 18:18 19:2,11 19:23,23 20:1 choose 19:18 Chorus 27:11,24 citizens 7:18,23 city 1:2,6 3:7 10:11 11:11 12:7,9,21 13:18 14:10,17 15:1,6 15:21 24:2,13 26:4 City's 15:16 class 2:21 clear 23:13,15 25:14 clerk 2:6,8 3:24 4:2 10:7,9,23 19:3,5 Clifford 19:12,24	closing 13:17 code 2:9,11,12 8:22 19:7,8,8,9 19:10,24 20:2,4 20:5,11,11,20 20:23,24 21:2,8 21:10,14,18,20 21:23,24 22:4,8 22:11,12,19,20 22:21 23:1,6,15 23:20,23,24 24:1,4 25:21,23 26:6 codes 22:13 23:12 coldest 8:14 come 4:3,6 17:20 23:7,7 comes 15:20 22:11 coming 23:8 commend 5:14 18:13 comment 24:23 comments 3:22 commercial 3:15 Commissioner 12:22 13:22 committee 1:3 2:3 3:19,23 4:13 7:8 7:15 11:6 19:21 22:24 23:13,18 27:5,18 28:3 Commonwealth 2:23 3:3 11:23 15:24 17:3 community 4:21 5:3 6:7,16,17 7:4,4 9:1,9 companion 20:18 company 4:16 5:20 13:15 complied 24:24 component 13:10 18:8 components 13:9 conclude 26:18 concludes 28:5
--	--	--	---	---

conditions 2:15 confusing 21:1 consist 14:13 consolidate 11:15 Construction 2:10 consuming 13:4 contact 24:20 contained 29:6 contains 20:12 21:4 continue 3:10 11:16 continuously 16:24 control 29:18 Conventions 12:1 cooperative 15:19 coordinate 3:2 copartners 3:1 copy 24:8,10 correct 25:8,21 26:2,3,7,10 29:9 correctly 25:5 correspondence 24:22 cost 6:14 8:5 12:18,20 13:20 15:6,9,9,20 costing 15:5 costs 15:22 Council 1:2 19:10 20:24 22:12 24:13 26:14 27:7,20 Councilman 1:10 1:10,12,12 2:2 2:16,18 4:3 5:13 7:7,13,13,15 8:3 8:19 9:13,16,24 10:6,20 11:1 14:3,6,9 15:4,10 15:23 16:15 17:7,11,14,23 18:2,3,3,4,20 19:3,13,17 20:8 22:2,6,7,23 23:1	23:3,17,21 25:4 25:10,17,18,20 25:24 26:4,8,11 26:16 27:1,2,3,9 27:12,16,22 28:1 Councilwoman 1:11,11 2:18,19 7:9 18:19 27:8 27:21 Counsel 24:18 counties 16:6 country 22:14 county 16:5 course 16:9 Court 29:12 Craig 10:19 11:4 11:6 critical 3:18 cross 16:7 current 13:12 21:9 CURTIS 1:10 cut 3:18 D D 1:11 dangerous 18:23 day 6:17 7:17 8:13,14 24:16 days 8:14 17:9 24:15 dealing 2:4 21:12 decided 6:6 declaration 16:13 Delaware 16:2,6 delivering 4:20 demonstration 6:1 DENNIS 1:12 Department 2:22 3:21 4:14 10:10 11:8 12:24 13:1 14:17 15:19 20:7,22,22 21:15,23 24:9 24:10,19,19,23	26:13 departments 21:21 Department's 15:17 19:23 deploy 16:11,14 Deputy 19:11,22 describe 8:4 detector 9:20 detectors 7:20 developed 4:24 developing 10:15 DHS 13:6 different 18:9 difficult 21:2,16 difficulties 4:10 direct 29:18 direction 3:11,13 5:16 directly 23:9 Director 13:22 disaster 17:12 disasters 11:22 discussion 26:22 doing 26:5 doors 6:8 21:6 drills 16:16 due 12:12 duplication 13:21 dwellings 20:15 E E 29:2 easier 21:19 easily 5:1,4 easy 14:23 edition 19:8 21:7 21:9 22:11,15 22:17 editions 22:18 educating 5:20 7:18 effective 4:20 efficient 4:20 efforts 3:2 Egress 21:4,9,11 elaborate 14:10	15:10 electrical 24:2 emails 24:18 25:15 emergencies 9:4 emergency 3:2 4:22 5:3 9:3,6 10:16 employee 12:18 employees 13:1 enacting 12:13 13:17 engage 11:21 12:3 Engine 4:15 6:18 7:6 engineers 13:10 enhance 8:22 enlightening 10:2 ensure 12:20 17:3 enter 10:13 11:12 entitled 2:10 19:7 established 12:21 event 16:22 17:22 events 11:24 evidence 29:5 exactly 16:23 example 21:3 Excuse 26:20 executed 12:11 existing 2:14 21:12 exit 21:6,6,6 exited 3:19 exiting 21:5 experiencing 4:10 explain 6:6 explanation 24:12 F F 2:11 19:6 29:2 fact 12:12 15:1 16:12 far 2:17 favor 27:10,23 favorable 27:6,18 28:3 federal 14:12	17:17,18 feel 8:19 FEMA 13:6 17:19 figure 18:11 fire 2:12,22 3:20 4:14 5:23 7:17 7:19 8:22 9:10 10:10 11:8 12:22,24 13:1 13:22 14:17 15:17 19:7,9,23 19:24 20:2,4,5,7 20:11,20,21,23 21:7,10,15,17 21:18,20,23,24 22:4,8,20 23:1,6 23:19 24:1,18 25:21,23 26:6 26:13 firefighter 4:17 8:11 fires 3:7,9,12 9:4 9:5 first 2:21,22 3:16 4:1 5:23 6:5 fiscal 12:8 five 8:9 16:5 24:22 flawless 14:24 focus 5:7 13:1 folk 5:22 following 12:16 force 10:12 11:8,9 11:14 12:5,11 13:2,8,11,14,24 14:12,14,16,18 15:18 16:8,24 17:17,19 foregoing 29:8,15 Forest 4:2,13 form 2:17 Former 19:23 FORREST 4:11 6:2 7:12 8:2,6 8:20 9:15,23 10:5 forward 10:3
---	--	--	--	--

found 8:7 20:23 21:16 frame 12:20 free 8:19 Friday 1:7 front 18:16 fully 13:24 29:6 funding 7:5 future 13:13	14:15,20 HazMat 13:9 heard 24:16 hearing 2:2 24:14 26:18 heat 3:16 held 26:22 help 6:10 7:23 9:17 helpful 5:21 Henon 1:10 7:15 23:1,3,17 25:19 25:20,24 26:4,8 26:11 27:2,3,14 27:16 Historically 12:9 home 9:11 Homeland 15:20 15:23 homes 4:22 8:16 20:14 honor 14:7,21 15:3 honored 2:21 15:4 hope 8:21 hours 15:15,15 Hurricane 17:4,6 17:9,9 hypoxia 8:11	increased 7:20 incurred 12:18 indicated 24:11 information 17:21 21:2,20 inspections 9:11 20:23 inspectors 21:15 21:19,21 install 5:5 8:4 9:18 installation 9:20 installed 20:17 installing 7:19 intensive 15:15 International 19:9,10 20:24 22:12 23:6,19 25:22,23 investment 18:15 involved 9:8 13:22 14:18 involvement 13:12 issue 14:15 issues 13:3	26:16 27:1,9,12 27:22 28:1 JR 1:10	L&I 21:15 23:1 23:10,12 26:12
G	I	J	K	M
game 3:9 17:4 Gilliam 19:12,16 20:1 22:3,4 give 9:2,24 17:21 24:15 25:5 given 21:22 25:1 glad 23:17 go 3:12 9:7,19 15:13 goal 5:2 goes 7:22 going 3:10 4:5 5:7 15:6 25:12 good 2:2 4:4,11 10:24 11:1,5 19:13,15,16,20 22:3 23:3,21 gotten 25:6,8 Governor 16:10 16:13 great 7:16 9:10 26:11 group 2:22 guidelines 11:17 13:6 Gustaf 17:6 G8 12:2	idea 7:11 identifiable 4:23 identification 2:13 5:21 identifications 3:14 identifier 9:22 identifiers 9:19 identify 3:17 5:5 importance 5:3 important 5:15 7:3 9:9 18:7 importantly 15:16 include 13:9	JANNIE 1:11 Jersey 16:7,11 job 26:5 Johnson 1:12 2:18 7:13 18:2,3 18:4,20 19:13 19:17 joined 7:15 22:7 Jones 1:10 2:2,16 4:3,12 5:13 7:7 7:13 8:3,19 9:13 9:16,24 10:6,20 11:1,5 14:3,6,9 15:4,10,23 16:15 17:7,11 17:14,23 18:3 19:3,21 20:8 22:2,6,23 23:21 25:4,10,17	Katrina 17:4 keep 7:23 15:22 keeping 12:5 KENYATTA 1:12 kind 24:1 knocked 6:8 know 6:24 9:9 16:21 20:8 knowing 18:24	maintaining 21:5 maintenance 10:16 21:4 making 21:1 24:7 man 11:23 15:15 mandate 22:10 mandates 22:14 March 24:8 MARIA 1:11 materials 8:7 matter 16:12 29:8 ma'am 7:12 mean 18:22 meaningful 5:22 means 21:3,9,11 29:17 meet 13:6 meeting 26:19 28:5,7 members 3:22 4:12 5:19 6:18 7:8 9:1 11:5 13:13 17:1,24 19:21 20:21 22:24 memorandums 11:13,18 memorialized 3:4 method 13:6 mic 4:8 minimal 15:22 minute 8:12 minutes 8:9 MOA 11:18 12:17 13:3 modifying 2:12 money 7:2 monoxide 20:13 Montgomery 16:5 motion 27:2,4,15 move 3:11 moved 27:9,22

28:2 multiple 11:12,18 12:12 Multipurpose 9:13 multi-year 10:14 municipalities 26:2 municipality 22:16 Murphy 10:19,24 11:4,4,6 14:4,6 14:8,12 15:8,12 16:4,20 17:8,13 17:16 18:18 19:2	25:6 noticed 4:22 notified 24:13,14 24:16 notify 24:6 number 16:16 numbers 8:9,10	P paid 12:6 panel 4:7 6:10 8:10 10:7,21 18:1 panels 5:6 6:20 8:8,15 9:2,8 part 3:6,20 6:17 6:22 9:19 16:18 16:20 18:13 participating 10:14 11:13,16 11:21 12:15 13:19 14:19 15:1 parties 13:21 partner 16:4 partners 3:21 13:13 partnership 10:3 passed 9:3 26:1 passes 21:22 27:13 pay 6:12,13 Pennsylvania 1:6 2:24 3:3 10:12 11:9,14 12:10 13:2,8,14,15,24 14:16 15:24 people 4:19 5:18 6:20 permit 13:5 persons 21:19 Philadelphia 1:2 1:6 2:9,10 4:14 4:16 10:11 11:7 11:12 12:24 13:18 14:10,17 15:2,6 16:5 19:7 19:7 26:4 Philadelphia's 12:8 phone 24:17 25:15 physicians 13:10 pieces 18:10 place 9:7 18:23	plan 5:24 played 5:11 please 2:6 3:24 4:3 8:19 10:7,21 11:3 19:3 plethora 7:22 plumbing 24:2 point 23:22 policy 5:16,18 position 4:19 positions 13:7,8 possible 14:24 15:22 potentially 19:1 premises 2:13 preparation 16:16 prepare 18:15 prepared 9:17 16:23 18:14 20:4 22:5 preparedness 10:16 12:4 16:22 18:7 prepares 16:24 present 1:9 2:17 14:5 20:6 presentation 5:8 18:8 Presidential 12:1 16:12 pretty 6:3 13:4,4 prevent 3:12 7:18 9:4,5 18:12 prevention 3:10 previous 20:14,16 21:7 probably 8:13 proceed 5:15 11:2 proceedings 29:5 process 8:5 11:16 13:4 15:14,14 17:19 processes 12:8 Procurement 12:24 product 5:19	program 4:24 5:2 5:9,11 6:7 8:21 8:24 project 6:1 12:19 promoted 4:15 properties 3:15 3:15,17 20:17 property 3:13,20 proposing 25:11 provide 5:2 6:9 providing 2:12 public 1:3 2:3,3 3:19 4:12 5:16 8:22 11:6 13:23 19:21 23:8,9,13 23:14,18 26:18 26:19 28:5,7 29:12 published 19:9 22:15 purpose 10:15 11:15 20:10 put 6:19 7:2 8:9 8:11,16 9:21 18:10 putting 5:14 puzzle 18:11 p.m 1:7 28:7
N N 29:2 name 3:9 11:2,4 19:18,22 national 10:12,17 11:24 12:1 17:12 25:21 nationwide 11:23 natural 11:24 need 16:8,23 needed 7:11 needle 3:11 neighborhood 6:5 6:21 new 2:14 16:7 21:22 22:11,15 22:17,18 newly 4:14 20:16 night 18:23 non-removeable 20:15 Normally 22:9 North 4:16 Nos 27:4 notably 18:16 Notary 29:12 note 2:16 22:6 noted 29:5 notes 29:7 notice 24:15 25:1	O O 29:2 occasions 16:17 Occupancy 2:11 occupants 5:6 Office 12:24 officers 6:18 7:2,5 official 25:6 oftentimes 18:8 okay 6:14 8:6 22:6 25:17 Olympics 12:2 once 13:8 14:21 16:7 online 8:7 open 26:19 opening 2:20 operate 11:17 operating 15:16 15:17 Operation 4:24 5:8 8:21 Operations 11:7 20:1,2 opportunity 8:24 9:21 opposed 27:12 28:1 opted 22:18 order 19:17 ordered 8:7 ordinance 2:8 10:9 11:15 12:14,19,23 13:5,11,17 14:1 19:5 20:5,12,16 24:10 outline 11:20 O'Brien 1:12 22:7			Q question 8:3 9:16 23:5 25:20 questions 7:7 17:24 22:24 26:16 quick 25:20 quicker 6:11 quickly 3:17 4:18 5:4 QUINONES-S... 1:11 quorum 2:16
			R R 29:2 rarely 12:13 reach 16:9 read 2:6 3:24 10:7	

19:4 27:7,19 readiness 10:17 16:18,21 18:7 real 23:4 realized 4:18 really 5:20 6:5 7:24 recognize 7:14 recognized 2:23 18:17 recognizes 27:1 27:14 recommendation 12:21 27:6,18 28:3 Recommended 27:17 record 3:5 7:14 11:2 12:4 19:18 26:23 recruiting 13:7 reduced 3:7 reducing 3:9 reflective 5:6 8:8 9:2,7 20:18 Regarding 20:20 region 16:5 regional 13:12,13 13:14 16:1,4 reinitiated 12:17 reiterate 7:10 related 13:20 20:12 21:17 relocation 21:13 remarks 2:20 removes 13:20 reorganization 21:18,24 repetitive 13:20 replies 25:3 report 17:20 reporter 29:12,19 representative 11:8 reproduction 29:17 request 16:10,13	required 2:13 23:22 24:14 requirements 20:13 21:4,8,13 21:17 requires 23:24 Rescue 10:13,18 13:15 14:13 17:2 residential 3:14 5:5 Resnick 13:23 resources 6:24 10:1,15 respond 25:14 responded 25:3 responder 2:22 responders 3:16 5:4,23 responding 4:21 7:17 response 3:18 10:13,18 11:21 16:19 17:5 24:21 25:7,9 responses 25:16 responsibilities 26:5 responsibility 7:21 result 8:20 retention 13:7 retired 19:22 20:6 24:8 Richard 19:11,22 right 3:11 7:16,22 13:3 rolling 5:24 Room 1:6 rules 27:6,19 28:4 run 15:14	11:6 13:23 19:21 21:17 23:8,9,14,14,18 23:19 26:6 salary 12:18 Sanchez 2:18 Sandi 17:9,10 Save 4:24 5:9,11 saves 15:8,9 scope 12:13 seamless 14:24 Search 10:13,17 13:15 14:13 17:2 second 3:6 26:20 27:8,10,21,23 seconds 3:18 section 4:16 Security 15:20,23 see 16:15 Seeing 3:24 26:17 27:12 Seek 5:1 seen 16:16 self 15:18 seniors 9:17 sent 24:10,18 separate 8:8 service 4:20 5:3 6:17 7:4 services 12:6 session 27:7,20 short 5:8 signs 21:6 simple 23:4 simplify 20:11 simplifying 20:20 simulation 16:17 sir 6:2 8:2,18 9:23 16:21 sit 18:9 sitting 3:8 situations 18:10 sleep 18:23 sleeping 18:24 smoke 7:19 9:20 20:14	soft 15:20 Solicitor's 12:21 sorely 7:10 Southeast 13:14 Special 11:7 specialty 13:7 spent 17:9 sponsor 15:5 sponsoring 10:11 12:7,10,14 13:18,23 14:16 14:20,22 15:2 15:21 stairways 21:7 stands 5:1 13:3 state 11:2 17:17 17:18 19:18 22:10,12,14,18 23:23,23 24:6 24:11,14,21,24 25:2,13 26:1 stated 6:2 15:12 statement 3:4 18:5 22:5 states 22:13 stenographic 29:7 step 3:13 streamline 13:6 stringent 24:3,4 structural 13:10 stuck 18:6,13 Subcode 2:11 19:6 subject 21:17 subsection 2:12 subway 16:18 Summits 12:2 supervising 4:19 supervision 29:19 support 11:10 14:1 20:3 25:12 supports 21:23 26:12,12,13,14 suppose 23:14 sure 15:12 25:2 25:13 surrounding 16:6	surveyed 6:4,16 suspension 27:6 27:19 28:4 sustaining 15:18 swiftly 3:17 System 10:13,18 14:13
T				
T 29:2,2 table 4:4 take 4:8,8 8:4,17 taken 29:7 takes 15:14 talk 8:24 talked 6:7 15:24 talking 9:3 task 10:12 11:8,9 11:14 12:5,10 13:2,8,11,14,24 14:12,13,16,18 15:2,17 16:8,24 17:17,19 team 9:17 10:4 13:15 teams 17:2 technical 4:10 ten-year 7:21 20:15 terms 2:14 terrorist 17:12 testify 4:1 10:8,22 11:10 20:3 testimony 11:3 15:13 18:5,21 19:19 20:6 23:4 25:18 26:17 thank 5:19 7:10 7:12,24,24 8:2 10:1,5,6 14:2,3 18:17,18,19,20 19:1,2,13 22:1,2 23:3,20 25:17 26:14,15,17 27:3,16 28:5 thankful 3:5,8 Thanks 14:4				

thing 6:23 8:18 9:10 things 7:1,23 8:23 think 18:16 26:13 three 6:3,8 22:10 24:18 time 8:4,17 9:12 12:17,20 13:4 14:2,14,14 15:13 18:15 22:19 24:15 26:22 times 3:18 title 2:6,9 19:4,6 today 11:10 19:24 20:3 top 17:3 training 12:4 17:1 21:22 transcript 29:9,16 transition 4:17 trickles 5:16,17 tried 14:22 try 15:22 trying 18:10 two 4:1 21:14 24:17 types 2:13 9:18 U understand 23:8 25:4 26:8 Unit 19:24 20:2 22:4 update 22:20 updated 22:8,9,22 23:12 updating 26:6 Urban 10:12,17 13:15 14:13 17:2 use 5:18,21 9:21 uses 22:12 24:2 usually 15:5 23:7 V variety 18:9 various 4:21	11:24 17:6 vehicle 23:18 vendor 8:7 Verify 5:1 Vice 1:10 27:1,14 video 5:8,11,14 6:3,5 visit 9:14 voted 27:5,17 W want 4:7 5:13,19 6:11 7:10,14 18:13 wanted 24:23 water 16:7 way 5:22 ways 10:2 12:16 went 6:19 8:13 22:20 23:12 24:8 we've 14:18 wind 15:5 winter 8:14 witness 4:6 7:8 18:1 witnesses 4:1 10:8 10:20 19:11 wonderful 7:11 work 7:16 8:1 12:5,19 13:21 14:23 working 7:19 10:3 works 5:17 15:11 world 18:22 Y year 11:12 20:21 22:15 years 11:19 12:12 22:10 Yup 17:8 1 1:11 1:7 1:47 28:7 12 6:19 7:6	13 17:9 130014 1:19 2:4,8 27:4 130184 1:19 2:5 10:9 11:11 27:17 28:2 130250 1:19 2:5 19:5 20:3 27:5 2 2 13:16 2009 19:8 2010 20:4 2011 14:15 2012 22:17 2013 1:7 23 13:19 28 14:13 3 3 1:7 30 8:16 24:15 30-days 25:1 4 4 2:9 19:6 400 1:6 5 50 4:16 6:18 7:6 9 9/11 17:5 90s 14:19 911 4:24 5:9 8:21 9:5		
--	---	---	--	--